
 

   
 

BENICIA HISTORIC PRESERVATION REVIEW COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 

City Hall Commission Room 

Thursday, March 24, 2016 

6:30 P.M. 

 

I. OPENING OF MEETING   

A. Pledge of Allegiance 

B. Roll Call of Commissioners 

Present: Commissioners Haughey, Macenski, von Studnitz, and 

Chair Van Landschoot 

Absent:  Commissioner Delgado (excused), McKee (unexcused) 

Staff Present: Suzanne Thorsen, Senior Planner/Recording Secretary  

 Amy Iungerich, Assistant Planner  

Mario Giuliani, Economic Development Manager 

C. Reference to Fundamental Rights of the Public 

 

II. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

On a motion of Commissioner Macenski, and seconded by Commissioner 

Haughey, adoption of the Agenda was approved by the following vote: 
 

Ayes: Commissioners Haughey, Macenski, von Studnitz, and Chair Van 

Landschoot 

Noes:  None 

Absent: Commissioners Delgado and McKee 

Abstain: None  

 

III. OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 

A. WRITTEN COMMENT - None 

B. PUBLIC COMMENT - None 

 

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR 

On a motion of Commissioner von Studnitz, seconded by Commissioner Macenski, 

the consent calendar was approved by the following vote:  

DRAFT 



 2 

 

Ayes: Commissioners Haughey, Macenski, von Studnitz and Chair Van 

Landschoot 

Noes:  None 

Absent: Commissioners Delgado and McKee 

Abstain: None 

 

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 25, 2016 REGULAR MEETING  

  

V. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 

A. REPLACEMENT OF DOWNTOWN STREET SIGNS 

Mr. Giuliani provided a presentation.  The Commission was asked if they 

recommend keeping the existing sign type or changing to a white sign 

with blue background. 

 

Public comment was opened. No public comment. 

 

 Public comment was closed. 

 

Commissioners inquired about the area in which signs are located and 

whether there are other alternatives available. Mr. Giuliani clarified that 

the signs are on First Street and the side streets.  All other signs would likely 

be replaced with white and blue in coming years.   

 

Commissioners inquired about the placement of the Benicia logo on the 

gold and blue prototype and discussed the use of letter standards.  Mr. 

Giuliani clarified that the historic district may use a font with all capital 

letters. 

 

Commissioners commented on legibility, cost, durability, overall 

attractiveness and use of a logo on the street sign. 

 

On a motion of Commissioner Macenski, seconded by Commissioner von 

Studnitz, the Commission recommend the blue and copper sign prototype 

with the Benicia logo and all caps lettering to the City Council by the 

following vote:  

 

Ayes: Commissioners Haughey, Macenski, von Studnitz, and Chair 

Van Landschoot  

Noes:  None 

Absent: Commissioners Delgado and McKee  

Abstain: None 

 

https://beniciacarebuild.govoffice2.com/vertical/Sites/%7BF991A639-AAED-4E1A-9735-86EA195E2C8D%7D/uploads/02_February_25_HPRC_Minutes_-_DRAFT.pdf
https://beniciacarebuild.govoffice2.com/vertical/Sites/%7BF991A639-AAED-4E1A-9735-86EA195E2C8D%7D/uploads/Replacement_of_Downtown_Street_Signs.pdf


 3 

B. MILLS ACT CONTRACT ANNUAL COMPLIANCE REPORT 

Ms. Iungerich provided a presentation. 

 

Commissioners expressed appreciation for the city staff inspection efforts.  

 

Commissioners inquired about properties that are not in compliance with 

the Mills Act contract. Staff noted that there are three properties not in 

compliance and commented that 401 First Street has requested non-

renewal of the Mills Act contract. 

 

Commissioners commented on the accuracy of property tax assessment 

and accepted the report. 

 

C. DISCUSSION ITEM – HPRC COMMUNITY OUTREACH  

Ms. Thorsen provided a brief introduction.  

  

Chair Van Landschoot presented an outreach idea for historic 

preservation.  He suggested that commissioners staff the Farmer’s Market 

periodically during the summer. Additional ideas include monthly or bi-

monthly columns in the Benicia Herald, Vallejo-Times Herald and Benicia 

Magazine with photographs and limited text.   

 

Commissioner Macenski inquired about California Office of Historic 

Preservation funding for outreach and marketing. 

  

On a motion of Commissioner Macenski, seconded by Commissioner von 

Studnitz, the Commission formed a sub-committee for HPRC Community 

Outreach, to include Chair Van Landschoot and Commissioner von Studnitz 

 

Ayes: Commissioners Haughey, Macenski, von Studnitz, and Chair 

Van Landschoot  

Noes:  None 

Absent: Commissioners Delgado and McKee 

Abstain: None 

 

VI. ELECTION OF OFFICERS (CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR) 

On motion of Commissioner Haughey, seconded by Commissioner Macenski, the 

Commission elected Chair Van Landschoot as Chair and Commissioner von 

Studnitz as Vice Chair by the following vote: 

 

Ayes: Commissioners Haughey, Macenski, von Studnitz, and Chair Van 

Landschoot 

Noes:  None 

Absent: Commissioners Delgado and McKee 

https://beniciacarebuild.govoffice2.com/vertical/Sites/%7BF991A639-AAED-4E1A-9735-86EA195E2C8D%7D/uploads/Mills_Act_2015_Annual_Compliance_Report_03152015.pdf
https://beniciacarebuild.govoffice2.com/vertical/Sites/%7BF991A639-AAED-4E1A-9735-86EA195E2C8D%7D/uploads/Community_Outreach_Mar_2016.pdf


 4 

Abstain: None  

 

VII. COMMUNICATIONS FROM STAFF 

 Ms. Thorsen thanked Commissioners who attended the California Office of Historic 

Preservation workshop at the State Historic Capitol Building on March 18.  She 

informed the Commission that a Mills Act workshop is scheduled for the evening of 

March 29 at 6:30 p.m. in the Dona Benicia room of the Benicia Public Library. 

 

Ms. Thorsen provided an update on the Arts & Culture Commission’s 

recommendation the Granizo tiles to be placed in proximity to the Benicia State 

Capitol building. 

 

VIII. COMMUNICATIONS FROM COMMISSIONERS 

Commissioner von Studnitz inquired about the California Preservation Foundation 

local government forum. 

 

Commissioner Haughey commented that she thought the California Office of 

Historic Preservation workshop was open to the public but there were community 

members who were disappointed to learn that the general public was not invited.   

 

Commissioner Haughey also commented on the property tax savings that may be 

achieved by participation in the Mills Act program.  She commented on the 

desire of the Benicia State Parks Association to host a window workshop and 

volunteered to organize a workshop. 

 

Chair Van Landschoot commented that the California Office of Historic 

Preservation workshop last week received compliments. 

 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 

Chair Van Landschoot adjourned the meeting at 7:34 p.m. 
 


